» o

\ s
N CITY OEF

YORK

COUNCIL

Notice of a public
Decision Session - Executive Member for Culture, Leisure and
Communities

To: Councillor Smalley (Executive Member)
Date: Tuesday, 7 June 2022
Time: 10.00am
Venue: The Thornton Room - Ground Floor, West Offices
(G039)
AGENDA

Notice to Members — Post Decision Calling In:

Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in any item* on
this agenda, notice must be given to Democratic Services by 4:00pm
on Thursday 9 June 2022.

*With the exception of matters that have been subject of a previous
call in, require Full Council approval or are urgent which are not
subject to the call-in provisions. Any called in items will be considered
by the Customer and Corporate Services Scrutiny Management
Committee.

Written representations in respect of items on this agenda should be
submitted to Democratic Services by 5.00pm on
Wednesday 1 June 2022.

1. Declarations of Interest
At this point in the meeting, the Executive Member is asked to
declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other registerable
interests he might have in respect of business on this agenda, if
he has not already done so in advance on the Register of
Interests.



http://modgov.york.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=144&Year=0
http://modgov.york.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=144&Year=0

Minutes (Pages 1 - 4)
To approve and sign the minutes of the Decision Session held on
19 April 2022.

Public Participation

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have
registered to speak can do so. Members of the public may speak
on agenda items or on matters within the remit of the committee.

Please note that our registration deadlines have changed to 2
working days before the meeting. The deadline for registering at
this meeting is at 5.00pm on Wednesday 1 June 2022.

To register to speak please visit
www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings to fill out an online
registration form. If you have any questions about the registration
form or the meeting please contact the Democracy Officer for the
meeting whose details can be found at the foot of the agenda.

Webcasting of Public Meetings

Please note that, subject to available resources, this public
meeting will be webcast including any registered public speakers
who have given their permission. The public meeting can be
viewed on demand at www.york.gov.uk/webcasts.

During coronavirus, we've made some changes to how we're
running council meetings. See our coronavirus updates
(www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy) for more information on
meetings and decisions.

Multiply Investment Plan (Pages 5 - 44)
This report sets out the basis for York’s approach to the Multiply
strand of the UK Shared prosperity Fund, in collaboration with
North Yorkshire County Council, so that an investment plan may
be drawn up for submission to the Department for Education

(DfE).

Urgent Business
Any other business which the Executive Member considers
urgent under the Local Government Act 1972.


http://www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings
http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
http://www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy

Democracy Officer:

Louise Cook
Tel: 01904 551031
Email: louise.cook@york.gov.uk

For more information about any of the following please contact the

Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting.

Registering to speak
Written Representations
Business of the meeting
Any special arrangements
Copies of reports

Contact details are set out above.

This information can be provided in your own language.
EPtAEMIESRMEEEISS (cantonese)
G2 BT NI Csa oI (RT (TCO AN | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze byC dostarczona w twoim

wiasnym jezyku. (Folish)

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)
L SIS ST e
T (01904) 551550



mailto:louise.cook@york.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda Item 2

City of York Council Committee Minutes

Meeting Decision Session - Executive Member for
Culture, Leisure and Communities

Date 19 April 2022

Present Councillor Smalley (Executive Member)

13. Declarations of Interest

The Executive Member was asked to declare, at this point in the
meeting, any personal interests not included on the Register of
Interests or any prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interests
that he might have in respect of the business on the agenda.
None were declared.

14. Minutes

Resolved: That the minutes of the Decision Session held on 22
February 2022 be approved and signed by the
Executive Member as a correct record.

15. Public Participation

It was reported that there had been one registration to speak at
the meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme.

CllIr Kilbane commented on both agenda items. He welcomed
the Westfield Multi-Use Games Area but wanted a robust
guarantee that it would remain accessible to the community. He
supported this investment, as anti-social behaviour had risen in
the area.

Regarding agenda item 5, CllIr Kilbane welcomed the scheme
and agreed that DBS checks were required and that the United
Nations advice should be followed, to not house female
refugees with single men. He questioned how the budget would
be allocated and requested that all the funding spent on the
programme be publicly accounted for. He welcomed City of
Sanctuary’s role within the programme and he confirmed that
the Labour group looked forward to welcoming Ukrainian
refugees to the city.



16.

Page 2

Westfield Multi-Use Games Area

The Executive Member considered a report that set out the
background to the removal of the Kingsway West Multi-Use
Games Area (MUGA) and the commitment of the Council to
reinstate a new and enhanced MUGA within the Westfield
Ward.

The Community Sports Development Manager provided a brief

update, noting that:

¢ In March 2019 the Executive had made a commitment that
alternative recreational facilities would be provided within
the Westfield Ward community, in mitigation to the loss of
the MUGA at Kingsway West.

A budget of £200k was approved by Full Council on 25
February 2021.

An approach was made to York Acorn Amateur Rugby
League Sports and Social Club, which was less than half
a mile away on foot from the old site. They had expressed
their approval for the new MUGA to be situated on their
site off Thanet Road.

The potential new MUGA could be in the region of
30mx45m, providing a significantly larger multi-use space
than the one that had been removed.

The planning application would be for an artificial grass
pitch, with flood lighting and fencing to support the sports
of rugby league and football but could also be used for
other active leisure opportunities and informal play.

The local community had been consulted throughout the
initial plans of the proposed development and recent
consultation was also carried out through Foxwood
Residents Association and at Foxwood Community
Centre. Many of the detailed features of the facility and its
opening hours would be developed in response to
feedback received.

Consultation had also taken place with Sport England,
The Rugby Football League and the North Riding County
Football Association and they had all offered their support
to move forward.

The Executive Member commended all those that had been
involved in the process, particularly officers and the Westfield
and Dringhouses and Woodthorpe Ward Councillors. He noted
that the old MUGA was missed by local residents and he agreed
that the new larger site would create great opportunities for the



17.

Page 3

community. He welcomed the investment and thanked officers
for the local consultation that had taken place.

Resolved:

(i) That Option 1 be agreed:

e That delegated authority be given to the Director of
Customer and Communities to apply for planning
permission for the new scheme.

e That the Director of Customer and Communities, in
consultation with the Director of Governance,
appoint the contractor to undertake the works, in
accordance with the council’s contract procedure
rules, and subject to the project being deliverable
within the available budget and planning permission
being received.

Reason: To secure the reinstatement of a Multi-Use Games

Area (MUGA) in the Westfield Ward and to help meet
the increasing demand for artificial grass pitches and
accessible sports facilities for young people in the area.

York’s Welcome to Ukrainian Refugees

The Executive Member considered a report that set out the
city’s response to welcoming Ukrainian refugees to the city.

The Assistant Director of Customer and Communities provided
an overview and in response to the speakers’ comments, he
stated that:

29 Ukrainian guests had arrived in York and numbers
were slowly beginning to increase, following a delay with
the visa applications.

The Government matched Sponsors to Guests, Local
Authorities (LA) were not involved in this process.

It was the LA’s responsibility to ensure property and DBS
checks had taken place and that safeguarding checks
continued, to monitor the success of the placements.
Officers would continue to consult with Guests, to monitor
their well-being and safety.

The funding available would directly support the Guests
well-being and their integration into life in York. The



Page 4

funding would also be used to employ additional staff to
respond to the needs of the Guests and Sponsors.

¢ Although some expenditure maybe required rapidly, there
would be full transparency on how the funding had been
used.

The Executive Member noted that Guests had started to arrive
in York over the last 10 days and officers were responding in a
flexible and person-centred way to ensure the individual needs
of each Guest were met. In answer to questions raised, it was
noted that the ‘thank you’ payments were made at the end of
the first month and a schedule had been created to ensure all
Sponsors received the payment.

The Executive Member referenced the challenges highlighted
within the annex to the report regarding using hotels as initial
accommodation sites for asylum seekers and he noted how
heart-warming the response was from York residents to support
people coming from the Ukraine to the city. He commended all
those that had been involved in the scheme.

The Executive Member also expressed his appreciation to those
that had registered to be a Sponsor on the Homes for Ukraine
Scheme. He thanked officers for the report and welcomed
Ukrainian refugees to the city.

Resolved:

(i) That the actions currently being taken be noted.

(i) That the initial funding to City of Sanctuary, set out in
paragraph 16 of the report, be agreed.

(i) That the grant arrangements, set out in paragraph 23 of
the report, be agreed.

(iv) That the arrangements with Migration Yorkshire, as set
out in paragraph 29 of the report, be agreed.

Reason: To provide an effective and coordinated welcome to

Ukrainians arriving in York

Cllr Smalley, Executive Member
[The meeting started at 9.00am and finished at 9.23am].



Page 5 Agenda ltem 4

Decision Session — Executive Member for 7 June 2022
Culture, Leisure and Communities

Report of the Director of Customer and Communities
Multiply Investment Plan

Summary

1. This report sets out the basis for York’s approach to the Multiply
strand of the UK Shared prosperity Fund, in collaboration with North
Yorkshire County Council, so that an investment plan may be drawn
up for submission to the Department for Education (DfE).

Recommendations
2. The Executive Member is asked to:

(i) Approve in principle the submission of the investment plan as
set out in the Annex.

(i) Delegate authority to the Director of Customer and
Communities to agree the final version of the plan for sign off
by the Chief Operating Officer for submission to the DfE by 30
June 2022.

Reason: To facilitate the finalisation of an agreed plan that will then
release funds for the project.

Background

3. Administered by the DfE, Multiply is a dedicated strand of the UK
Shared prosperity Fund. The overall objective of Multiply is to
increase the levels of functional numeracy in the adult population
across the UK. The following are the success measures for the
programme at a national level:

e More adults achieving Maths qualification courses
e Improved labour market outcomes
e Increased adult numeracy across the population

More information can be found here Multiply: funding available to
improve adult numeracy skills - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/multiply-funding-available-to-improve-numeracy-skills
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/multiply-funding-available-to-improve-numeracy-skills

10.

11.

12.

Page 6

York and North Yorkshire have been awarded the following amounts
over a three-year period commencing in September 2022:

Year North Yorkshire | York

1 £806,587 £224,111
2 £930,678 £258,559
3 £930,678 £258,559
Total £2.6m £741,000

The money is to be allocated and used based on an evaluation of
need and is to be returned in the form of an investment plan to the
Department for Education by 30 June 2022.

It is important to note that this money is to support a partnership of
providers across the region and not just for the Adult Learning
Services of City of York Council and North Yorkshire County
Council.

The submission of the investment plan is an iterative process with
the DfE who will work with authority leads to ensure that the plans
comply with the programmes aims.

Funds for Year 1 will be released once the investment is agreed with
further years’ funding being released in the April of each financial
year.

Consultation
A survey of providers has been undertaken to gather interest in
working on provision.

Further consultation will be completed alongside the consultation on
the adult learning strategy with all potential stakeholders.

Options and Analysis
It is open to the Executive Member to determine the basis of the
submission that is made to the DfE.

It would be possible to decouple York’s investment plan from North
Yorkshire’s but this would potentially decrease the efficiency and
effectiveness of the fund’s management.



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Page 7

Issues

In drawing up our plan the aim has been to demonstrate how the
funding will be used most effectively for the greatest benefit to the
region, its economy and its residents and communities.

At this stage no presumptions are made about which parts of the
programme should be delivered by the respective authorities and
which parts should be contracted externally.

Any provision delivered under Multiply cannot displace or replace
any activity delivery already via Adult Skills or Community Learning
funding. Activity towards Maths qualifications already utilises
around 33% of the £8m funding received in the region. There is no
indication at this point on whether this will be measured.

There is an issue with Multiply relating to tracking and performance.
It is clear that learner’'s engagement will be based upon learners
being flagged on the Individual Learner Record (ILR) that is returned
to the Education Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) on a monthly basis.
This functionality is only open to registered education providers but
there is a requirement to engage learners working with employers
and community and voluntary groups who are unlikely to be able to
return ILR information. Furthermore, it has not been determined
whose ILR returns tracking will be through so it is difficult to
determine whether there will be an additional cost in relation to data
entry and monitoring and where any costs will sit.

In addition, it has not yet been determined if provision under multiply
will be subject to Ofsted and if it is whose Ofsted inspection will it fall
under. Therefore, ring-fencing funds to cover quality assurance
cannot be accurately determined.

The funds allocated to the region for multiply have been based on
the total number of individuals who are of working age compared to
how many of those have a level 3 (A level equivalent) or higher
gualification. Skills data for York and North Yorkshire indicates that
as a high performing region, large numbers of individuals within the
county actually have qualifications that would prevent them
accessing the multiply provision. With funds only available to those
aged 19+ who do not hold a GCSE / O level equivalent in Maths.



19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Page 8

Council Plan

The strong intention in the use of this funding is to support
progression on to provision that will upskill / reskill individuals to
address the significant skills shortages in the region. Additional to
this will be to use the experiences of the provider base to test
delivery and engagement methods with different demographics.

Although activity has been impacted by the pandemic, traditionally
spend of AEB and Community Learning funding has matched the
grants received by providers. It is expected that next academic year
will see a return to the pre - pandemic levels.

This provision already supports significant numbers with basic skills
with the largest proportion (around 64%) of this in Maths. The other
largest volume of this work is in individuals engaging in a range of
community learning provision, this provision incorporating family
learning engages large numbers of individuals, providing vital
gateway activity and supporting community engagement, cohesion,
reduction of rural isolation and the important improvement in mental
health and wellbeing. As this funding is regularly used it is important
that it is not displaced, but it is also clear that its aim and reach must
be more closely aligned with local skills strategies and that the
engagement demographic must be broadened.

When age and gender demographics are considered, clear groups
can be identified in the current use of the AEB funding strands. in
York and North Yorkshire engagement with Adult Learning provision
is skewed toward a 31-49 age group and a white female
demographic; however, research would suggest that those
accessing training are more likely to be those with higher levels of
gualifications with YNYLEP reporting that of those accessing training
it is a minority of learners (37%) who lack formal qualifications below
Level 2.

The same study into the use of the Adult Education budget
highlights that the sub-region has a relatively small ethnic minority
population that accounts for less than 3% of the total adult
population but that these groups are much more likely to engage in
further training with around 8% of the individuals accessing training
being from an ethnic minority background. It is important to note,
however, that York has a higher level of diversity and also that this
data is pre-Brexit and the demographics are dynamic. For example,



24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

Page 9

migrants coming into the region on recent resettlement schemes will
have access to ESOL interventions often leading to further AEB
linked activity.

If we consider engagement with training by region, there are strong
areas of engagement and those areas with high levels of need, such
as those individuals who are unemployed, are actually well served
already by targeted provision.

This suggests that community outreach is particularly effective in
those areas with multiple needs such as Scarborough and areas of
York. One method of targeting the funding can therefore be
according to areas of disadvantage engaging with the multi-agency
working already in place in these communities. To be most effective
we will need to build upon practice with hard-to-reach communities
but actually seek to work with those individuals who are currently in
work, on low wages and with low levels of qualifications.

Key to reaching those individuals will be community touch—points,
areas where individuals naturally come together and through large
employers. Significant will be ‘pass-it-on’ word of mouth promotions,
coupled with bite size social media engagement linked to numerical
activity such as simple maths puzzles.

Provision of the right types of adult learning are seen as a key
cornerstone of government policy and the importance of community
level education is stressed, but the context stresses the importance
of progression to higher level qualifications and in offering provision
that meets local and national skills needs. The most effective use of
Multiply within York and North Yorkshire in line with these aims must
be based upon engagement and effective IAG led progression.

An education landscape that is driven by the skills needs of
employers is essential for economic development. The importance
of this is set out in the Skills Strategy devised by York and North
Yorkshire Local Enterprise Partnership, (YNYLEP) through its co-
ordination of the Skills and Employability Board and is mirrored in
the 10-year skills plan of the City of York. Taking the cross-region
higher level strategy as lead there four key ambitions:

e Young people are equipped to make quality decisions about
education, training and careers



29.

30.

31.

32.

Page 10

e Employers have the skills to grow inclusive and productive
workplaces where everyone can achieve their potential

e The local skills market meets the needs of local businesses in a
dynamic economy

e Communities are empowered by learning and skills that enable
everyone to participate fully in society

Whilst Multiply cannot directly impact on the first of these ambitions,
by garnering greater understanding of opportunities through
supporting a greater range of adults we can nonetheless impact it by
creating more community-based skills advocates.

The YNYLEP report on community learning and its companion
reports, ‘Analysis of Adult Education Budget (AEB) funded provision
in York and North Yorkshire — June 2020’, ‘Digital Skills in York &
North Yorkshire: An Assessment of Supply and Demand — April
2021’ and ‘Upskilling and Reskilling across York and North
Yorkshire — Stakeholder and Provider perspectives — March 2021’
paint a picture of an educational landscape that has the intention to
meet the demands of the community but a failure to engage
individuals in the breadth of learning experiences necessary to meet
the aims of skills strategy, stressing a disconnect between the
majority of adults and the skills.

Engagement from adults tends to be low level in FE institutions
(some exceptions exist) when compared to provision for 16-18-year-
olds, or it is very targeted with large groups of employed individuals
under legal entitlements. National and local strategy is, by design,
based upon the needs of employers, local economies and future
jobs markets. The YNYLEP digital skills report however details that
there is a clear disconnect. “There is a gap between digital skills
needs in the community, and the extent to which these are
translated into demand for learning. Lack of confidence, fear of the
unknown, and “not knowing what you don’t know” contribute to this,
and learning is likely to revolve around informal routes.” Although
this statement relates specifically to digital skills it should be similarly
applied across the whole adult learning provision. Multiply must seek
to provide a solution to this.

By funding innovative ways to reach a wider demographic Multiply
can set an effective gateway to many of the UKSPF initiatives to



33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

Page 11

follow. Maximising engagement and throughput to the strategic
outputs of the skills plans, will support many of the UKSPF in
levelling up disparities in the county where clear disparities exist
between those with qualifications and those without.

Implications
Financial Implications

The timing, in relation to gaining Executive Member approval,
requires that the investment plan is completed before all information
is available which will enable full costing of the proposals. Figures
included in the Annex are indicative. Investment plans will
subsequently be created that fully detail proposed spending plans.
There will be a requirement to model how spend will be transferred
to delivery partners including York Learning. At this stage no
presumptions are made about which parts of the programme should
be delivered by the respective authorities and which parts should be
contracted externally.

Human Resources (HR)

There will be a requirement to recruit dedicated staff to oversee the
management and success of Multiply. With only 10% of funding
allowable for administration this may not stretch beyond an
Operational Manager post which will be shared with North Yorkshire.

Further engagement staff may need to be employed, to be funded
from the delivery funding.

Equalities

There will be positive equality implications with provision being
aimed at all individuals aged 19+ without a formal Level 2
gualification in Maths.

We will seek to engage with all learners in ways that they feel most
comfortable to engage. Those who are already engaged with
learning will likely to have already been subject to some levels of
screening at enrolment and will likely be offered additional support.

By working directly with groups in the community we will show our
openness to engagement with individuals within any protected
characteristic and will aim to support those individuals in ways that
they feel most comfortable with, engaging low level diagnostic



Page 12

activity and supporting access through use of funding to provide
additional support.

There will be a requirement to develop a procurement framework
and draw up appropriate contracting arrangements for fund
administration. To support delivery, the initiative must be supported
by an appointed governance board with powers to award funds.
Crime and Disorder

It is not anticipated that there will be any crime and disorder

Information Technology (IT)

Legal
39.
40.

implications.
41.

42.

As part of the governments total investment in Multiply there will be
a launch of national Multiply website to support delivery. This will
link directly to local information sources so we must ensure that
Multiply is visible on the website and that links are in place. The
expectation is that resources on this site support individuals to
overcome barriers to numeracy but this will potentially highlight
digital poverty and digital inequality. As an n an authority we must be
sensitive to that and use our networks to complete further digital
upskilling.

Property
There are no expected implications for property.

Risk Management

Description of
risk

Actions you will take to
mitigate

After mitigation
what is the
likelihood of the
risk occurring
(High >70%,

Possible 70-30%,

Unlikely <30%)

After mitigation
what would be the
impact of the risk
materialising?
(High: significant
impact of unable
to deliver,
Medium: delivery
compromised,
Low: Minor /no
impact)

Lack of learner
engagement

Using multiple engagement
points and methods,
development of partnership
development roles to co-

Possible

Medium




Page 13

author projects

Provision seen Develop agreed programmes | Unlikely Low
to displace or and target groups. Work
replace AEB closely with partners in detalil
provision of intervention design. Quality
assurance management by
Operations Manager
reporting to board
Partners over- Use of project led approach Possible Low
promising will bring on partners to
match cohorts / Use of
innovation pot approach to
match opportunity , need and
learners
Digital Ring fencing of funding within | Possible Medium
connectivity each provision intervention to
impeding access | create most appropriate
to provision digital access options, e.g.

more community IT provision

Contact Details

Author:

Chief Officer responsible:

Paul Cliff

Shared Head of Adult Learning
and Skills (York and North

Yorkshire)

paul.cliff@york.gov.uk

Charlie Croft
Assistant Director (Customer and
Communities)
charlie.croft@york.gov.uk

Report
Approved

v

Date

24.5.22.

Specialist Implications Officers:

Wards Affected: All

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers:

e York and North Yorkshire Adult Learning and Skills Engagement
Strategy Draft for Consultation

e York 10 year Skills Plan

e Greener Fairer Stronger — Covid 19 A Plan to reshape the

economy



mailto:paul.cliff@york.gov.uk
mailto:charlie.croft@york.gov.uk

Page 14

e York and North Yorkshire Labour Market Analysis 2021
e York and North Yorkshire LEP Skills Strategy 2021-2026

e Digital Skills in York & North Yorkshire: An Assessment of Supply
and Demand

e York and North Yorkshire Community Learning Skills Report
e York and North Yorkshire AEB Skills Report

Annex:
Annex A: York and North Yorkshire Multiply Investment Plan Draft

Abbreviations:

AEB: Adult Education Budget

DfE: Department for Education

ESFA: Education and Skills Funding Agency
ESOL: English for Speakers of Other Languages

FE: Further Education
IAG: Information, Advice and Guidance
ILR: Individual Learner Record

UKSPF:  United Kingdom Shared Prosperity Fund
YNYLEP: York and North Yorkshire Local Enterprise Partnership



Page 15
Annex A

&

Department .
for Education Multiply

Multiply

Investment plan template (England)

May 2022

For Mayoral Combined Authorities, the Greater
London Authority, and upper tier/unitary local
authorities outside of these areas in England



Page 16

Annex A
Contents
About this document 3
Section A: Multiply intervention summary 4
Section B: Strategic fit 8
Section C: High level delivery timeline 10
Section D: Evidence of need and demand 11
Section E: Engaging learners 19
Section F: Measuring success 21
Section G: Stakeholder management 22
Section H: Risks 23
Section I: Capacity and Capability 24

Section J: Declaration of the Chief Executive of the lead local authority 25



Page 17

Annex A
About this document

In conjunction with this template, please refer to the Multiply investment prospectus and
technical guidance for England available here
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/multiply-funding-available-to-improve-
numeracy-skills

Investment plans are invited from the Greater London Authority, all Mayoral Combined
Authorities, and upper tier/unitary authorities outside of these areas in England. Scotland,
Wales and Northern Ireland should refer to the wider UKSPF investment framework

Please ensure you complete this template in full and submit by 30" June 2022 by
emailing Multiply.investmentplans@education.gov.uk

Once investment plans are approved, provisional allocations will be signed off, grant
agreements will be put in place incorporating information included in this investment plan
and first payments made in autumn 2022.

At the end of the 2022-23 and 2023-24 financial years, areas will submit an annual
progress report, and a revised investment plan for subsequent years of Multiply
provision. This should take on board learning achieved through local delivery, peer to
peer support networks and engagement events. It should align with the updated menu of
interventions and any new guidance issued each year by the Department for Education.

For further information or to discuss a proposal ahead of submission please contact DfE
at Multiply.investmentplans@education.gov.uk

Please note that information provided on this form, including personal information, may
be subject to publication or disclosure in accordance with the access to information
regimes, primarily the Freedom of Information Act 2000 and the Data Protection Act
1998.

We have suggested word counts for questions as an approximation but will allow some
flexibility and will not apply the word count rigidly. We don’t anticipate investment plans to
be longer than 25 pages. We won’t accept additional attachments beyond the return of
this document and the accompanying Excel spreadsheet.

1. Who are the local authority representatives for Multiply (name, email, telephone)?
Multiply lead: Paul CIiff / paul.cliff@northyorks.gov.uk / 07890055217

Financial / Accounting Officer:
Richard Flinton, Chief Executive North Yorkshire County Council

lan Floyd, Chief Operating Officer City of York authority


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/multiply-funding-available-to-improve-numeracy-skills
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/multiply-funding-available-to-improve-numeracy-skills
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-shared-prosperity-fund-prospectus
mailto:Multiply.investmentplans@education.gov.uk
mailto:Multiply.investmentplans@education.gov.uk
mailto:paul.cliff@northyorks.gov.uk

Page 18
Annex A

Section A: Multiply intervention summary

2. Inthe accompanying spreadsheet, please provide a high-level summary of the
interventions to deliver Multiply in your local area, along with related output indicators
and required budget?

3. If you have described any Multiply provision in Section A that does not fit the menu of
interventions, what is your rationale for proposing this additional intervention? We will
consider this proposal against the aims of the Multiply programme. You can answer
“None” for this question. (Approx. 250 words)

We are keen to create an innovation fund, not earmarked initially against any of the 9
interventions. This fund will be managed, with bids considered by the board appointed to
oversee Multiply. Engagement with a range of organisations will be essential to the
success. Identifying the places where groups of individuals come together, or to tease
out the key interaction points will take time. To potentially earmark all funds towards the
tried and tested will limit the innovation that is necessary to unpick the ‘golden thread’ of
engagement that will be the key to unlocking the potential of York and North Yorkshire’s
residents. By innovating we will be ensuring that funds and not crossover or displace
existing funded provision.

By creating an innovation fund that is held by the Multiply board will allow us to support
the development of this practice. With a principle of ‘pass it on’ embedded through the
project ethos this will then support more organisations to stimulate more people to
engage with number.

This approach will support ‘best value’ commissioning principles as we can flex this as
more organisations come on board and as we see the impact of the other planned
initiatives, this will ensure that spend is maximised

4. Please confirm and explain how your Multiply provision is in addition to and does not
duplicate or offset fully funded maths courses delivered through the Adult Education
Budget statutory entitlement, or other government funded maths provision. (Approx.
250 words)

The strong intention in the use of this funding is to support progression on to provision
that will upskill / reskill individuals to address the significant skills shortages in the region.
Additional to this will be to use the experiences of the provider base to test delivery and
engagement methods with different demographics.

Although activity has been impacted by the pandemic traditionally spend of AEB and
Community Learning funding has matched the grants received by providers. Although we
are in a recovery phase after the pandemic, it is expected that next academic year will
see a return to the pre - pandemic levels shown below:



Page 19

Annex A
Table 1: Scale of AEB provision in YNY, 201819
Education and Community
Training Learning
Funding (£) £8.2m’ £3.0m?
Participation® (unique learners) 9,950 6,700
Enrolments 13,930 11,480
Starts (unigue learners) 8,996 6,630
Continuing learners 1,127 100

ESFA Data Cube from York and North Yorkshire LEP Analysis of Adult Education Budget (AEB) funded provision in York and North

Yorkshire July 2020 —Updated

This provision, as can be seen in the table from same report below, already supports
significant numbers with basic skills with the largest proportion (around 64%) of this in

Maths.

Figure 1: Number of unique learners starting an Education and Training programme

by academic year

201718

® Basic skills = Other learners

2018M19

The overall number of learner starts in 2018/19 saw a 15% increase on 2017/18,
whilst the number of basic skills starts increased by 16%.

The other largest volume of this work is in individuals engaging in a range of community
learning provision, this provision incorporating family learning engages large numbers of
individuals, providing vital gateway activity and supporting community engagement,
cohesion, reduction of rural isolation and the important improvement in mental health and
wellbeing. As this funding is regularly used it is important that it is not displaced, but it is
also clear that its aim and reach must be more closely aligned with local skills strategies
and that the engagement demographic must be broadened as can be seen from the
graphic below from the YNYLEP report on Community Learning participation.



Page 20
Annex A

Figure 2: Community Learning Delivery Strands

8,000

7.000 [

6,000

5,000

4,000

3,000

2,000

1,000

201617 2017/18 2018/M19

B Personal and community development leaming ® Neighbour learming in deprived communities
= Wider family learning “ Family English Maths and Language

When age and gender demographics are considered clear groups can be identified in the
current use of the AEB funding strands, again from the YNYLEP report on AEB spend.

Figure 21: Participation by gender, age band and programme strand, 2018/19
academic year

3,500
3,000
2,500
2,000
1,500
1,000

500

19-23 24 25-30 3149 50-64 65+ |19-23 24 25-30 31-49 50-64 @65+

Female Male
® Education and Training ™ Community Learning

Source: ESFA Localities Cube

We will use Multiply funding to attempt to flatten these curves, but will also use the
funding to ensure that those engaged with learning are able to develop their confidence
in the use of number and to pass on the importance of that skill to others in their families



Page 21

Annex A
and communities.

5. Please briefly set out how you have considered the FE workforce needs (e.g.
classroom, tutoring) for Multiply. How will you ensure Multiply workforce needs will not
be at the detriment of other programmes you are delivering (e.g. under the AEB
statutory entitlements)? Please note, FE workforce investment should support
delivery of Multiply provision and should not be a standalone intervention. (Approx.
250 words)

Initial audit of local providers has indicated that capacity exists to support Multiply
initiatives of the 14 providers responding to the initial engagement 93% indicated
workforce capacity to support the initiative. The providers that are lacking in capacity are
those heavily engaged in the AEB provision that Multiply has the potential to displace and
funding should be used to enhance this capability, particularly in laying down the
foundations of post-Multiply legacy.

The engagement and drive for the York and North Yorkshire initiative will be seeking to
maximise the opportunities for organisations not currently engaged with funded delivery
to deliver the necessary outcomes. This will require training, co-ordination and quality
assurance but will greatly increase the delivery capacity without having an adverse
impact on other funded provision.

What will be key will be the places were face-face delivery will take place, again the aim
is to take Multiply into communities and utilise community spaces rather than displace
other funded activity.

We will also be seeking to increase the embedding of number and number principles into
existing provision that already attracts learners. This ‘soft touch’ approach will again
increase capacity without displacing the provision. The development of resources that will
seamlessly do this will again offer a better value approach in the use of funds.



Page 22
Annex A

Section B: Strategic fit

6. How does the proposed Multiply provision strategically fit with your local priorities,
coordinating where possible with wider skills and employment interventions in local
areas (for example through Local Skills Improvement Plans), and interventions funded
through the broader UKSPF (e.g. in district council investment plans) or other
programmes? (Approx. 500 words)

Expectations on the post 16 education sector have never been greater, with the focus of
national policy firmly fixed on the sector as a cornerstone of post Covid-19 recovery. The
‘Skills for Jobs — Lifelong Learning for Opportunity and Growth’ whitepaper published in
January 2021 laid out a bold ambition to place employer skills needs at the heart of the
post-16 system and to empower individuals to use learning to progress into work and in
the workplace to higher paid and higher skilled jobs. The provision of the right types of
adult learning are seen as a key cornerstone of the policy and the importance of
community level education is stressed, but the context stresses the importance of
progression to higher level qualifications and in offering provision that meets local and
national skills needs. The most effective use of Multiply within York and North Yorkshire
in line with these aims must be based upon engagement and effective IAG led
progression.

An education landscape that is driven by the skills needs of employers is essential for
economic development. The importance of this is set out in the Skills Strategy devised by
York and North Yorkshire Local Enterprise Partnership, (YNYLEP) through its co-
ordination of the Skills and Employability Board and is mirrored in the 10-year skills plan
of the City of York. Taking the cross region higher level strategy as lead there four key
ambitions:

e Young people are equipped to make quality decisions about education, training
and careers

e Employers have the skills to grow inclusive and productive workplaces where
everyone can achieve their potential

e The local skills market meets the needs of local businesses in a dynamic economy

e Communities are empowered by learning and skills that enable everyone to
participate fully in society

Whilst Multiply cannot directly impact on ambition 1, by garnering greater understanding
of opportunities through supporting a greater range of adults we can impact this, creating
more community based skills advocates.

The YNYLEP report on community learning and its companion reports, ‘Analysis of Adult
Education Budget (AEB) funded provision in York and North Yorkshire — June 2020’,
‘Digital Skills in York & North Yorkshire: An Assessment of Supply and Demand — April
2021’ and ‘Upskilling and Reskilling across York and North Yorkshire — Stakeholder and
Provider perspectives — March 2021’ paint a picture of an educational landscape that has
the intention to meet the demands of the community but a failure to engage individuals in
the breadth of learning experiences necessary to meet the aims of skills strategy. The
reports stress the disconnect between the majority of adults and the skills. Engagement
from adults tends to be in general, (some exceptions exist) low level in FE institutions
when compared to provision for 16-18 year olds or is very targeted with large groups of
employed individuals under the legal entitlements. National and local strategy is, by



Page 23

Annex A

design, based upon the needs of employers, local economies and future jobs markets.
The YNYLEP digital skills report however details that there is a clear disconnect. ‘There
is a gap between digital skills needs in the community, and the extent to which these are
translated into demand for learning. Lack of confidence, fear of the unknown, and “not
knowing what you don’t know” contribute to this, and learning is likely to revolve around
informal routes.” Although this statement relates specifically to digital skills it should be
similarly applied across the whole adult learning provision. Multiply must seek to provide
a solution to this.

By funding innovative ways to reach a wider demographic Multiply can set an effective
gateway to many of the UKSPF initiatives to follow. Maximising engagement and
throughput to the strategic outputs of the skills plans, will support many of the UKSPF in
levelling up disparities in the county where clear disparities exist between those with
gualifications and those without.

Highest Qualification - 16+ - by LEP Lower-teir LA

40.0%
35.0%
30.0%
25.0%
20.0%
15.0%
10.0%

5.0%

0.0%

No qualifications Level 1 qualifications Level 2 qualifications Level 3 qualifications Level 4 qualifications
and above

e Jalad09:Craven e Jalad09:Hambleton == (1alad09:Harrogate
== Jalad09:Richmondshire === ualad09:Ryedale === 1alad09:Scarborough

e 1alad09:Selby e jalad09:York



Page 24

Section C: High level delivery timeline

7. Please provide an outline of your high-level delivery timeline including major

Annex A

milestones and planned partnerships with local education providers, employers, and
other local touchpoints

Multiply Delivery partners Major milestones Date Comments
provision
All Adult Learning Providers, FE Colleges , Charity | Appointment of Operations Manager and August 2022 Recruitment shared across
and Voluntary providers partnership lead York and North Yorkshire
Recruitment of Governance Board September Shared Governance
2022 arrangements
Engagement events for Providers and potential August 2022 Will be combination of virtual
providers and face-face activity
Recruitment of partners and due diligence Late August Preferred supplier route
2022
Expression of interest for delivery of key events September /
October 2022
Commence Delivery November
2022
Courses Adult Learning Providers, FE Colleges , Charity | Development of resources to commence using August 2022 This work to plan to start in
designed to help | and Voluntary providers authority adult learning service and key partners house originally as lower risk
people use
numeracy t‘? Promotion activity around key initiatives planned | September Will require appointment of
manage their 2022 board and key roles to sign off
money.
Programme delivery to start October 2022
Courses Adult Learning Providers, FE Colleges , Charity | Identification of key programmes that could be September This will be existing planned
designed to and Voluntary providers, employers enha}nced with nu_mber and funding amount 2022 provision that could be
increase required per provider enhanced
confidence with
numbers for
those needing Working group set up for development of September Cross partnership teams
the first steps resources and initial plans outlined 2022 developing common resources
towards formal to support embedding and
numeracy develop the micro-course
qualification materials
Bite size resources complete and ready for roll November Partnership team to have
out 2022 employer groups ready for pilot
Innovation September
funding Board appointed and principles for awarding set 2022
out
Calls for first batch of funding and initial awards November

2022




Page 25
Annex A

Section D: Evidence of need and demand

8. Please describe why improving adult functional numeracy (aiming to teach the
numeracy skills that are needed in daily life and the workplace) matters to your local
area. You should refer to specific characteristics of your local area in your answer and
include supporting evidence - especially quantitative forms of evidence where
available. (Approx. 250 words)

The table below show the four biggest sectors in the York & North Yorkshire LEP (YNY).
Based on the Working Futures Study, the sector with the lowest prospects is
Manufacturing, forecast to see a 10% reduction in employment by 2027. With
manufacturing forecast to see a significant decrease by 2027, some districts (such Selby
and Ryedale) are considerably more vulnerable with between 1 in 4 and 1 in 5 workers
employed in the manufacturing sector.

% Emloyees engaged in Manufacturing
30.0%
25.0%

20.0%

15.0%

10.0%

o tartd
0.0% .

York & North Yorkshire LEP == == == England

- Manufacturing

The chart below shows the proportion of the YNY workforce employed by sectors that are
forecast to see growth or decline by 2027. Across the LEP, over have of employees are
engaged in sectors that will see decline, increasing in Hambleton, Ryedale and Selby.
Given the importance of functional numeracy in developing reasoning and logical thinking
skills, it is key to unlocking people’s potential to adapt to an increasing skilled-sector led
marker.

% Employed in Sectors forecast to see growth vs. forecast to see
decline

Sectors seeing Decline Sectors seeing Growth

B Growth EEEE Decline

England ==<=Y&H

Given the vulnerability of the workforce in LEP as a whole (1 in 10 employed in
Manufacturing, and over half in sectors that are forecast to see decline) and certain



Page 26

Annex A

Districts more specifically in terms of future-proofing employment and skills, improving
functional numeracy has the potential to become a cornerstone for upskilling the
workforce. Reflective of a need to upskill the workforce, around two-thirds of employers
have upskilling needs in the LEP, with functional numeracy skills being highlighted as an
area for development.

In addition to this there is a correlation between the level of qualification and the average
earnings: The first shows the Median basic wage of the 16-64 working age population
plotted against % Level 1+ and % Level 2+ qualifications. Particularly the Level 1+
gualification shows a clear correlation between lower rates of Qualification and lower
wages, particularly in Scarborough & Ryedale.

Median basic weekly Wage Vs. 16-64 level of Qualification
(Level 1+ & Leve 2+)

000 10005
0.0
5
£500000 0L
£400.00 o
300000 S0.09E
40.00%
£ 200,00 30.0%
.
£ 100000 o
10.0%
£ 0.0

m— bAedian Base Pay el el 14 il 5 Lovel 24

When this data is considered alongside the YNYLEP Labour Market analysis a further
and more pressing need becomes clear. Gross median pay for workers in full-time jobs is
£13.29 per hour, this is 87% of the national average of £15.31. As a result the LEP area
faces a significant low pay challenge with 22% of jobs paying below the Real Living
Wage, rising to 28% in Scarborough and Ryedale; much higher than the national average
of 20%. Acute deprivation is not widespread in the LEP area with only 3 per cent of
neighbourhoods falling within the 10% most deprived nationally but with rapidly rising
costs and pressures on individuals, families and communities the ability to effectively
manage finances and to be able to access higher paid roles indicates an acute need for
improved numeracy.



Page 27

Annex A

9. Please describe any qualitative or quantitative data you have on local adult numeracy
levels (e.g., historic and current participation and achievement, etc) to evidence need
and demand. (Approx. 250 words)

Across North Yorkshire as a whole, the outcomes in maths at KS4 has historically been
stronger than national. However, at a more localised level, pupil’s taking their GCSEs in
Scarborough consistently fall short of the national average — indicating a considerable
gap in maths skills amongst young adults in Scarborough.

KS4 Maths Trend C+ / 9-4

90.0%

85.0%

80.0%

75.0%

70.0%

65.0%

60.0%

Change from levels (A*-G) to Numerical
55.0% grading (9-1)
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

c+ C+ C+ C+ C+ 9-4 (equivalent to C+) 9-4 (equivalent to C+) 9-4 (equivalent to C+)

e (raven  emmHambleton e Harrogate Richmond — emmmmRyedale —emmmm=Scarborough emmmmSeclby = = == NorthYorkshire == == York e === National

Whilst across the YNY LEP is ranked second in the north in the proportion of people
qualified to at least level 2, at a district level, the need for localised ‘levelling up’ is clear,
with Ryedale and Selby all lagging behind the national rate in terms of 16 to 64 year old
qualified to NVQ Level 1 or higher. Scarborough just hits the national average, whilst all
other areas have notably higher rates than the national average.

% 16-64 Year Olds qualified to NVQ Level 1 or

above
100.0% 95 g% o 95.7%
95.0% 93.9% 93.2% 93.0%
90.0% 87.6%
o 84.5% -80%
85.0% 5%
80.1%
80.0%
75.0% I
70.0%
N N 4 <@ & 3\ N
2 O X & » Ny &
@ & & & & & % ©
& szs’g\ & < N
N & &
8 3
Q_}

. % NVQ Level 1 or above e oland % Level 1+

Reflected below, in terms of any Qualifications, of the YNY LEP area, Ryedale,
Scarborough and Selby all have notably higher rates, with Ryedale peaking at 13% of 16-
64 year olds having no Qualifications, followed by Selby at 10.1% and Scarborough at
9.2%. It is well recognised that qualifications are a key indicator of social mobility — and



Page 28

Annex A

therefore a lack of qualification amongst a considerable proportion of the population has
significantly restricted social mobility.

% 16-64 Year Olds with no Qualifications

14.0% 13.0%
12.0%
10.0% 9.2% 10.1%
8.0%
i 6.40%
o "o 3.7%
. (+]
4.0%
I 2.1% I
2.0% .
0.0%
o 'S e <@ & o Ky x
g & é‘,& a,(“‘ 3 0\)% c,éo <
o) ) &L & Q:\@ &
& W o ©
s & &
Q‘b(l S

I % No Qualification — =% no Qualification

Looking at the wider picture, the Indices of Multiple Deprivation looks at a number of
areas, including Education, which measures the lack of attainment and skills in the local
population. Overall, whilst a majority of districts (Inc. York) in the LEP have an average
rank in the lowest (‘best’) half nationally, Richmondshire falls slightly short of the ‘mid-
point’ with an average rank of 151 out of 317 districts/boroughs. Scarborough, however,
is significantly lower, ranked 59 with 17% of neighbourhoods in the 10% most deprived
nationally in terms of education and skills.

Average Rank - Education, Skills & Training Decile

IMD
300
250
200
l 50 - - - S S S S D D L G S S S R S S S - -
100
, i
0
N o @ <@ & NS 3\ &
& &° & E:»‘Bé\ & & & <
& /b(g\o & 'b(‘\ 6\0(\ Q:\ {00
‘2‘ (:.(\ (j(:b

In terms of access to Numeracy Courses, there is some correlation between the areas
with the lowest rank in terms of Education, Skills & Training (such as Richmondshire &
Scarborough) and enrolment in Numeracy Courses offered through North Yorkshire

county councils adult learning service, (ALSS, used as the second highest provider of



Page 29

Annex A

basic skills qualifications and the largest cross county deliverer). The chart below shows

the

average number of enrolments by district since 2018/19 with. This would suggest that

targeted work can have an impact but also indicates the need to also deliver cross county

an

80
70
60
50
40
3
2
1

o o o o

10.

initiative that reaches those not previously defined as hard to reach.

Enrolments in Maths - Basic Skills Vs. GCSE - ALSS

> & i < AN
S© %0 \(\\‘\ b’b\ \)%

2

Ky
2 0
< J\OQQ o

& L ")Q'

M Basic Skills Maths B GCSE Maths

How does the Multiply provision outlined in section A meet this demand, on top of
how existing entitlement is already meeting it, and what does success look like for
your local area? (Approx. 250 words)

It is clear that multiply approaches across York and North Yorkshire will have two
clear priorities, the ability for individuals, families and communities to effectively use
number to be able to gain confidence and stability in trying economic times, but also
to engage individuals to overcome previous barriers to learning that have led to non-
engagement in the extensive offer provided.

This provision cannot be built on an ‘if you build it they will come footing’ as offers
provided by all current AEB delivery partners have been shaped to respond to need
and as can be seen from data has resulted in the adult education landscape
described.

Multiply in York and North Yorkshire will look to provide routes to engagement that will
reduce fear of number and in fact learning. We will utilise the cost of living crisis as a
thematic hook to work with targeted communities via voluntary partners, delivery
institutions and key partners to increase access and raise opportunity.

Key to that will be the support offered across the Multiply partnership to deliver
common messages and well planned independent Information , Advice and
Guidance, signposting clear and effectively toward locally agreed progression
ladders. Engagement and delivery methods are key and how we are to provide the
gateway for Indi duals to feel comfortable to step through can be defined in six groups
as shown below, with partnership and development approaches outlined.



Page 30

Annex A

Gateway

Example Approaches

Example Partners

For learners who have no confidence or
have not been in education for some
time. This is also a suitable starting
area for those who have had bad
experiences within education

To engage within places that
individuals come together, be it
schools, clubs, community groups,
workplaces, libraries or similar. To use
a range of partners around individuals
e.g. voluntary organisations and to use
non-threatening themed engagement
activity such as social media posts,
community QR tags or hints and tips on
tickets

Adult Learning Services, FE Colleges,
Charities, voluntary organisations,
cross-authority community
partnerships, employers

For learners who have little confidence
and have not been in education for
some time.

In addition to above - Tasters, online
activities, community workshops, co-
delivery activity, Hidden maths learning
e.g. not explicitly advertised as maths
but contains elements of Maths

Adult Learning Services, FE Colleges,
Charities, voluntary organisations,
cross-authority community
partnerships, employers, civic venues

For learners who are still unsure on
how they feel about learning and still
suffer reduced confidence in
themselves but have attended either
step 1, 2 or both.

Micro-tasters, flexible delivery,
supported coaching and mentoring,
IAG led workshops both online and
face to face. Workplace linked activity e
.g. lunch clubs

Adult Learning Services , FE Colleges,
Training Providers, employers,
voluntary organisations, cross-authority
community partnerships

For learners who have an idea of what
they are looking to do but still need to
make other steps to achieve it.

Wider skills IAG sessions linked to
employment sectors, progression and
bite size sessions identifying key areas
to develop. Use of digital platform,
embedding of numeracy into existing
sessions with supportive IAG

Adult Learning Services , FE Colleges,
Training Providers,

For learners who are preparing to take
the steps towards gaining a
qualification

Targeted action planning , supportive
bite size activities, cross provider
progression ladders

Adult Learning Services , FE Colleges,
Training Providers,

Learners who have the ability to learn
and know what career path they are
looking to follow. They would have
gone through IAG throughout their
journey and have a career plan in
place.

Shared Signposting to most appropriate
AEB provider(s) to support next step
progression. Provision for learners
largely under AEB entitlement but also
offering progression for those who do
not meet eligibility criteria e.g. those
enrolled in HE programmes

Adult Learning Services , FE Colleges,
Training Providers, universities

Success for Multiply in York and North Yorkshire in line with the measurable outputs
will see greater levels of engagement in numeracy provision, more co-ordinated
progression pathways for learners and a reduction in the qualification disparity.
Supporting a broader demographic into learning, through numeracy confidence, in
those groups who do not currently engage is also important. If this can be achieved
by improving individual confidence and wellbeing through small lifestyle changes, by
greater understanding of finance or improved employment or employment
progression opportunities then the programme can be deemed to be a success. The
creation of firm and lasting partnerships built upon trust and common aims will then
be a standing legacy of this intervention.

11.Please describe what you have done to ensure good value for money (e.g., has your
plan been reviewed by an economist, have you reviewed local data?). Please also
describe what controls you will put in place to ensure that good value for money
continues to be achieved throughout the lifetime of the Multiply provision. (Approx.



Page 31

Annex A
250 words)

**Note for executive plans will be reviewed by finance teams but key aspects of
programme management are still to be determined by the DfE including participant
ownership, tracking and whether provision is subject to Ofsted and whose Ofsted it
will fall under, these checks will be carried out before the final investment plans are
submitted to the DfE**

Plans have been checked by the financial management team at North Yorkshire
County Council to ensure that these are in line with best value principles.

The project will have dedicated operational manager who will oversee operations are
in line with the budgets set for each activity. This individual will be accountable to
multiply board containing key local stakeholders.

The expectation and plans for Multiply across York and North Yorkshire will aim to
utilise current capacity were possible to support the engagement activity and will look
at integration by extension of aspects of provision.

By managing a joint coordinated plan under a single operational lead we will further
seek to reduce duplication and support consistency to drive efficiency.

Procurement of partners will be on a preferred supplier approach preventing loss of
funding through complex sub-contracting arrangements that may actually prevent
engagement with the community and voluntary sector. This will enable funding to be
project lead and support attainment of outputs rather than ring-fencing funding on a
provider by provider basis requiring complex virement arrangements should aims not
be achieved.

Finally the innovation fund will seek costed but viable proposals for consideration by
the board with value being one of the determining factors alongside social impact and
diversity of participants.

The YNYLEP conducted research into the impact of the European Structural and
Investment fund across the region and within it cited a number of best practice
principles for the successful planning of future initiatives these will be used as a
cornerstone of governance and best value, key principles being:

e Reduce bureaucracy to a minimum to streamline provision and keep management
costs as low as possible.

e Invest time in planning and research before commissioning to avoid duplication
and ensure that provision aligns with existing activity.

e Contracting must be simple with a one body responsible for performance
management, financial control and strategic steer.

e Undertake procurement processes within one-year timescales to ensure relevance
and timeliness of contracts and outputs when delivery starts.

e Reflect all strategic outcomes desired within paid outputs to ensure they are
achieved.

e Tried and tested interventions should be the first option with contracts let for at
least three years. Test innovative provision with a limited budget and over a short
timeframe.

Invest resources in partnerships and collaboration as they are the single most



Page 32
Annex A

important factor in successful contracts.

Contract models that include trusted Key Workers who build a lasting relationship
with participants are more likely to succeed.

A delivery model with the client at the centre is more likely to achieve the strategic
outcomes sought than a model which focusses on other contractual requirements
such as financial incentives for challenging outputs.



Page 33

Annex A
Section E: Engaging learners

12.Which cohorts of learners will be hardest to reach? How do you intend to maximise
the reach of the programme and make sure Multiply provision engages those learners
that are hardest to reach (e.g., communications; reaching out to people via
employers, ‘touch points’ such as housing and other community groups)? (Approx.
300 words)

As detailed in question 4 and below in York and North Yorkshire engagement with
Adult Learning provision is skewed toward a 31-49 age group and a largely white
female demographic with good levels of engagement with these groups, however
research would suggest that those accessing training are more likely to be those with
higher levels of qualifications with YNYLEP reporting that of those accessing training
it is a minority of learners (37%) who lack formal qualifications below Level 2.

The same study into the use of the Adult Education budget highlights that York and
North Yorkshire has a relatively small ethnic minority population that accounts for less
than 3% of the total adult population but that these groups are much more likely to
engage in further training with around 8% of the individuals accessing training being
from an ethnic minority background. It is important to note that this data is pre-
pandemic and pre-Brexit so dynamics of these communities are likely to have
changed but due to the nature of recent re-settlement interventions large proportions
of those communities who are coming into the region will have access to ESOL
interventions often leading to further AEB linked activity.

If we consider engagement with training by region, there are strong areas of
engagement and those areas with high levels of need, such as those individuals who
are unemployed, are actually well served already by targeted provision.

Figure 6: Take-up of AEB-funded provision by district in context of indicators of need
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%

20%

II || | 1t
ol G i e o Il
& & @ @ o

. \;Fl g"‘i
C}rsl é&ép -:Sd:? QQ?? ﬁﬁbﬁ {cp\'jg %é'\
& T o
s

&

¥ Population - 19-64
" Residents of most deprived neighbourhoods
mAEB CL learners

 Unemployed claimants
AEB ET learners



Page 34

Annex A

This suggests that community outreach is particularly effective in those areas with
multiple needs such as Scarborough and areas of York. As a result areas of
disadvantage are one method of targeting the funding, possibly learning from areas
well supported, but that those identified often as ‘hard to reach’ within York and North
Yorkshire are possibly easier to reach due to multiple agency working already in
place.

To be most effective we must build upon practice with hard to reach communities but
actually seek to work with those individuals who are currently in work, on low wages
and with low levels of qualifications.

Key to reaching those individuals will be community touch —points, areas were
individuals naturally come together and through large employers. Significant will be
‘pass it on’ word of mouth promotion, coupled with very bite size social media
engagement linked to numerical activity such as simple maths puzzles

13. How will you ensure Multiply provision will be available and accessible to a diverse
cohort as per Public Sector Equalities Duty (PSED) including those with dyscalculia or
other protected characteristics? (Approx. 100 words)

We will seek to engage with all learners in ways that they feel most comfortable to
engage. Those who are already engaged with learning will likely to have already been
subject to some levels of screening at enrolment and will likely be offered additional
support.

By working directly with groups in the community we will show our openness to
engagement with individuals within any protected characteristic and will aim to
support those individuals in ways that they feel most comfortable with, engaging low
level diagnostic activity and supporting access through use of funding to provide
additional support.


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-equality-duty

Page 35
Annex A

Section F: Measuring success

14.We expect Multiply learner data to be inputted into the Individualised Learner Record
(ILR). Describe your approach to data collection, management, and reporting to meet
these requirements (Approx. 250 words)

** There is a current lack of clarity from the DfE in terms of what this actually means in
practice so answering this question is not possible at this date but will be by June
submission**

Scenario 1 all learners will be registered through a single ILR through sub-contracting
arrangement, this is high admin demand for input onto reporting systems

Scenario 2 —learners will be registered by providers who have a registered ESFA
account requiring tracking by the lead authority to check for compliance and accuracy
and to map and track trends

Scenario 3 — a hybrid of the two with large organisations completing own returns but
smaller organisations being partnered with larger in locations requiring transfer of
administrative funds to large providers

15.What additional data (in addition to the Individualised Learner Record), if any, will you
use to measure learner progress and achievement? If you do not have any additional
data, you can answer “none”. (Approx. 100 words)

We will aim to see progress from engagement activity to other provision as we see
this as a key priority area for the region. We will also seek to measure engagement of
individuals linked to prior qualifications and employment status to address the
disparity in the use of AEB funding

16. Are there any other local measures of success against your plan that you intend to
monitor? You can answer “not applicable” for this question. (Approx. 100 words)

We will be keen to increase the levels of partnership working between institutions of
all types, increasing common approaches to IAG and a greater level of understanding
of the adult learning and skills offer across the region to de-mystify access points and
encourage enjoyment and progression into learning institutions of all types.

We want to do this to build a strong legacy platform for the intervention and will be
seeking to identify what the key barriers to engagement have been up to this point.



Page 36

Annex A
Section G: Stakeholder management

17.Which organisations have you engaged with to develop your investment plan,
including public sector, private sector, and civil society organisations? How have you
engaged these organisations? (Approx. 100 words)

We have engaged with learning providers of all types across York and North
Yorkshire via an initial engagement survey. This has helped to shape a picture of the
current numeracy provision available. We have done this via the YNYLEP and
through the York Learning Providers network. We intend to undertake further work
with providers through engagement events as we shape the investment plan.

We have used our intra authority arrangements to develop engagement points with
community and voluntary organisations and will seek to reach out further via
engagement events as we shape he investment plan but also on an ongoing basis
through the innovation funding pot.

Partnership engagement will be an ongoing activity led by the Operations Manager
but supported by an engagement team

18. Detail how have you engaged lower tier local authorities, if any, within your local area
in the development of your investment plan? You can answer “not applicable” to this
guestion. (Approx. 100 words)

As North Yorkshire County Council is moving to a single tier authority status within a
year there have been lots of opportunities through LGR work streams to discuss
multiply and as the investment plan develops in parallel with work on UKSPF
investment plans this activity by its nature will include the lower tier authorities. York
as a unitary authority neighbouring but likely to be part of a devolved MCA are closely
linked to this process particularly around skills helping to shape the combined aims of
this plan.



Page 37
Annex A
Section H: Risks

19.Please set out any key risks including financial and fraud that could affect Multiply
delivery. Describe these risks or issues, including the contingency measures you
have put in place to mitigate them.

Description of risk

Actions you will take to
mitigate

After mitigation what is
the likelihood of the
risk occurring (High
>70%, Possible 70-30%,
Unlikely <30%)

After mitigation what
would be the impact of
the risk materialising?
(High: significant
impact of unable to
deliver, Medium:
delivery compromised,
Low: Minor / no impact)

Lack of learner
engagement

Using multiple
engagement points and
methods, development
of partnership
development roles to
co-author projects

Possible

Medium

Provision seen to
displace or replace
AEB provision

Develop agreed
programmes and target
groups. Work closely
with partners in detail
of intervention design.
Quality assurance
management by
Operations Manager
reporting to board

Unlikely

Low

Partners over-
promising

Use of project led
approach will bring on
partners to match
cohorts / Use of
innovation pot
approach to match
opportunity , need and
learners

Possible

Low

Digital connectivity
impeding access to
provision

Ring fencing of funding
within each provision
intervention to create
most appropriate digital
access options, e.g.
more community IT
provision

Possible

Medium




Page 38
Annex A

Section I: Capacity and Capability

20.Do you have dedicated capacity and capability to deliver adult skills interventions and
adult education? How many FTE will be working on delivery of Multiply and what
functions are being undertaken by those FTE including who will be responsible for
data collection, contract management and how you will coordinate delivery? (Approx.
250 words)

**Due to clarity requirements from DfE as previously discussed this is difficult to ascertain exactly. Both

authorities have capacity but this will need to be enhanced, providers who have engaged so far suggest
they have available capacity and in addition we will be using partners who will support activity with their

current teams for learner benefit**

21.1f you have capacity, would you be prepared to take a leading role in a regional peer-
to-peer network to share learnings with other local authorities (e.g. host quarterly
Multiply sessions, share best practice, etc)? This does not commit you at this stage
and we will use this information to develop our learning plans across the Multiply
programme. (Approx. 100 words)

We aim to introduce a desiccated Operations manager to co-ordinate the project across both authorities, it
is envisaged that this individuals job description will allow this opportunity to be explored

22.Please describe the key capacity and capability challenges (if you have any) for
delivering skills interventions. This could include challenges within your local authority
(e.g., gaps in areas such as procurement, contract management, communications)
and/or in your local delivery system? This information will be used to inform what
support could be made available nationally. (Approx. 100 words)

** Again difficult to respond at this stage without the full information available around learner tracking and
Ofsted requirements, we have scoped a potential procurement route at North Yorkshire and will discuss
having similar for York for consistency**

23.Please describe what further support would help address these challenges? We will
use this information to inform what central government support is made available
nationally but cannot commit to fund every individual request. (Approx.100 words)

** Again difficult to respond at this stage without the full information available around learner tracking
and Ofsted requirements, we have scoped a potential procurement route at North Yorkshire and will
discuss having similar for York for consistency**

24. Are there interventions or capability areas where you can partner with other local
authorities, providers, or employers in your region? (Approx.100 words)

We are writing this as a joint intervention between York and North Yorkshire authorities to increase
efficiencies, we will be seeking to develop a common ‘employer pledge’ to release individuals for
training in working time to provide a clear indication to the business community that this can have a
positive impact both on productivity but also employee mental health

We will seek to develop similar pledges with other large employers such as NHS trusts to extend this
benefit but to show the low risk nature of this to the significant micro and SME community across the
county area.

We will be seeking close partnership activity in delivery plans with providers along the six - step model
previously discussed. This will require effective partnership to effectively move learners between
engagement points and into highest level activity.



Page 39
Annex A

Section J: Declaration of the Chief Executive of the
lead local authority

As the lead local authority (Greater London Authority, Mayoral Combined Authorities,
Upper Tier/Unitary Local Authorities) you will act as the accountable body and submit this
application on behalf of your local area. By submitting this investment plan, you confirm:

All the information included is true and accurate to the best of your knowledge.

You have read, and confirm this plan is in accordance with, the expectations set
out in the Multiply investment prospectus and technical guidance.

Lower tier local authorities within your local area support this application and are
committed to work with you.

You will comply with the Assurance and Grant management process as outlined in
the technical guidance and submit a statement of expenditure at mid-point and
end of financial year.

You understand that the grant will become repayable and further payments put on
hold or reduced, if Multiply outputs are not on track for delivery and/or grant
funding is not spent on eligible activities by the mid-point and end of each financial
year.

You understand that you will be responsible for ensuring data on Multiply learners
is submitted through the Individualised Learner Record (ILR) and will submit
regular monitoring reports as set out in the technical guidance.

You will submit an annual progress report including an assurance statement to
confirm spend was used wholly for the purposes for which it was given, and a
revised investment plan for subsequent years of Multiply provision as set out in the
technical guidance.

You will support the sharing of learning as requested by the Department for
Education — this may involve providing case studies, contributing to webinars and
other activity as identified.

You will comply with the Public Sector Equalities Duty and put in place equality
policies and implementation plans as well as processes for learners to raise
complaints about unfair practices or treatment.

You will ensure value for money, seeking competitive costs for all activities and
complying with the procurement governance as set out by your governing body.

Chief Executive name

Signature

Date (DD/MM/YYYY)




Page 40
Annex A

Department
for Education

© Crown copyright 2022

This publication (not including logos) is licensed under the terms of the Open
Government Licence v3.0 except where otherwise stated. Where we have identified any
third party copyright information you will need to obtain permission from the copyright
holders concerned.

To view this licence:
visit www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/version/3
email psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk
write to  Information Policy Team, The National Archives, Kew, London, TW9 4DU

About this publication:
Enquiries www.education.gov.uk/contactus
download www.gov.uk/government/publications

Follow us on Twitter: 'i Like us on Facebook:
@educationgovuk facebook.com/educationgovuk



http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/version/3/
mailto:psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk
http://www.education.gov.uk/contactus
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications
http://twitter.com/educationgovuk
http://www.facebook.com/educationgovuk

Appendix 1 to Annex A

Number | Multiply intervention (please see | Short description of Multiply Related fund output indicators Estimated Estimated Estimated Budget
page 7 of the investment provision (there could be (please see page 8 of the technical output output output
prospectus) multiple types of provision for guidance) 22-23 23-24 24-25 22-23 23-24 24-25 Total
each intervention)
Example [What Multiply intervention are you |What is the provision you intend [Referring to the six fund output e.g. 5new |e.g.5new e.g. 5new |£1,000 £2,000 £2,000 £5,000
delivering? to deliver? indicators on page 8 of the technical courses or |courses or reach|courses or
e.g. Courses designed to increase |Who is the target audience for |guidance, what outputs will this reach 100 100 learners reach 100
confidence with numbers for those |this provision? provision deliver. If you want to select |learners learners
needing the first steps towards Are there any comms activities |[more than one please add an
formal qualifications to increase reach required to additional row
deliver this provision? e.g. Number of adult numeracy
Approximately, how many guided|courses run in a local area through
learning hours will the provision |Multiply
include?
e.g., a cross-agency /
partnership approach, working
with local employers (for
example, to deliver in-work
confidence building courses)
1 Courses designed to help people Work with individuals already Number of people participating in aim to reach |aim to reach 200|aim to £27,780 £22,224 £27,780 £77,784
use numeracy to manage their engaging with community Multiply funded courses 125 learners [learners reach
money. groups, delivery of short 250learner
interventions around budgeting, S
switching energy provider, home
efficiency, budgeting etc. Likely
to be 10GLH short interventions
2 Courses designed to increase Development and Number of people participating in resource aim to reach 50 |aimto £8,334 £8,334 £8,334 £25,002
confidence with numbers for those |implementation of micro- Multiply funded courses developed |learners reach 100
needing the first steps towards chunked bite size numeracy and piloted learners
formal numeracy qualifications. T provision to be used in with 25
conjunction with the employer learners
pledge. Sessions may be 10-15
mins in length building to
individual unit confidence tests to
support progression to AEB
3 Numeracy activities, courses or Development of provision using |Number of different cohorts Pilot with 2 ]aim to work with [aim to work|£27,780 £41,670 £41,670 £111,120
provision developed in partnership [intelligence gained from the participating in numeracy courses (e.g. |organisation |5 partner with
with community organisations and |partnership to identify the clear |learners in prison, parents etc) S organisations additional
other partners aimed at engaging hook for delivery. Courses will 10
the hardest to reach learners then be costed and resourced to organisatio
match the need. Partnering ns but
between non-registered and develop
registered provider to develop progressio
resources and staffing n
programme

T abed



Appendix 1 to Annex A

Courses designed to help people Working closely with schools, Number of adult numeracy courses run |work with 2 |work with 5 work with  |£2,941 £5,788 £5,788 £14,517
use numeracy to manage their develop a cost of living linked in a local area through Multiply schools with |schools with 10 schools
money. numeracy programme that also around 10 |around 10 with
develops parents and families learners per |learners per around 10
use of number appropriate to programme |programme learners
key stage around 2 hours per per
week programme
Courses designed to increase Supporting providers who Number of different cohorts Developmen |[embedding with [embedding |£5,556 £11,112 £11,112 £27,780
confidence with numbers for those |already have engagement to participating in numeracy courses (e.g. |t of common |a quarter of within a
needing the first steps towards embed number into learning learners in prison, parents etc.) resources |delivery partner |half of
formal numeracy qualifications. T activities. This may typically and trialled [programmes, delivery
require adding additional time on on reaching around |partner
top of funded GLH. Common programmes |80 learners programme
resources will be developed and across S, reaching
used, with shared progression various around 200
based IAG based on locality SSA's , with learners
discussed. aim for at
least two
programmes
per provider
engaging at
least 10
learners per
programme
Numeracy activities, courses or Development of 'pass it on Number of people participating in Developmen [referral to referral to |£1,389 £834 £1,112 £3,335
provision developed in partnership [resources' and provision for all |Multiply funded courses t of common |provision by 150 [provision
with community organisations and |providers to encourage learners resources learners by 200
other partners aimed at engaging who have increased in with aim of learners
the hardest to reach learners confidence to share stories and referrals
be targeted to pass on the from 50
message to other people they learners
feel will benefit from provision.
Learners themselves
incentivised at £10 per additional
learner engaged
Courses aimed at people who can’t |Engagement events with FE / Number of adult numeracy courses run |at least one |at least 2 events |at least 3 |£19,446 £27,780 £22,224 £69,450
apply for certain jobs because of university and IOT partners and |in a local area through Multiply event with  |with 50 learners |events t
lack of numeracy skills and/or to named employers showing 25 learners |recruited into with 100
encourage people to upskill in impact of numeracy and from event |provision learners
numeracy order to access a certain [transferrable skills development recruited recruited
job/career to support movement into areas onto other into
with key vacancies provision provision

2t abed



Appendix 1 to Annex A

8 Courses designed to increase Provision in communities that Number of people participating in At least 2 At least 4 events At least 4 |£21,224 £30,558 £27,780 £79,562
confidence with numbers for those [combine use of number with Multiply funded courses programmes |with progression |events with
needing the first steps towards wellbeing initiatives , including piloted and [into next step progressio
formal numeracy qualifications. T healthy eating , health meal prep evaluated to |provision for n into next
for families, programmes being consider 25% step
short and bite size possibly 3 hrs demographic provision
leading to progression into other recruitment for 50%
targeted provision. Delivered and impact
across the partnership
9 Courses designed to increase Development of QR codes linked|Number of people participating in Recruitment [recruitment of  |recruitment|£26,780 £27,780 £27,780 £82,340
confidence with numbers for those |to maths puzzles and games to [Multiply funded courses onto 25% of |50% of multiply |of 50% of
needing the first steps towards increase confidence in the use of multiply provision to multiply
formal numeracy qualifications. T number with correct solution funded come via this provision to
leading directly to local provision. provision to [route come via
These activities will be mirrored come this route
on social media, but be placed through this
on the backs of tickets, till route
receipts and other regularly used
media
10 Courses designed to help people Pop up activities that could be  |Number of people participating in at least one |at least 2 events |at least 3 |£26,875 £28,824 £31,324 £87,023
use numeracy to manage their held in supermarkets and Multiply funded courses event with  |with 40 leaners |events with
money. shopping centres that support 25 learners |recruited into 60 leaners
people to use number to make recruited provision recruited
their money go further, similar in onto other into
approach to money saving provision, provision
expert roadshows wills support plus
discussion on credit, ore efficient development
spending, healthy eating etc. of resources
.. Add £0
rows as
required
Any off- |Development of ring-fenced This cannot be pre-determined [Number of adult numeracy courses run |5 new 10 new courses |11 new £30,131 £27,7801 £27,780 £85,691
menu innovation fund to be administered |at this stage and is likely to in a local area through Multiply courses courses
provision |by the Multiply Board match one of the agreed
interventions in time but will be
matched to organisations who
will bring guaranteed learner
groups and defined need
Un- Are there any remaining funds that are unlikely to be spent? £0
allocated
Admin Will include 90% coverage of an Operations Manager role (York to contribute 10%) at £58,279 including on-costs and an engagement officer at £40,094 £25,875 £25,875 £25,875 £77,625
inc on costs to be shared with York 50% each totalling £72445, other costs to support procurement and financial set up in year 1, year 2 will use funds to
develop team of progression coaches for key providers
Total £224,111] £258,559] £258,559 £741,229

¢ abed



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 Multiply Investment Plan
	Annex A
	Appendix 1 to Annex A




